UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON

In the Matter of

NGC CORPORATI ON, File No. 961-0046

a corporation.

N N N N N N N N

AGREENMENT CONTAI NI NG CONSENT ORDER

The Federal Trade Commi ssion ("Conm ssion") having initiated
an investigation of the proposed conbi nation invol ving NGC
Corporation ("NGC') and certain assets of Chevron Corporation,
and it now appearing that NGC, hereinafter sonetines referred to
as “proposed respondent,” is willing to enter into an agreenent
containing an Order to divest certain assets, and to cease and
desist fromcertain acts:

It i1s hereby agreed by and between proposed respondent, by
its duly authorized officers and attorneys, and counsel for the
Conmmi ssion that:

1. Proposed respondent NGC is a corporation organi zed,
exi sting and doi ng busi ness under and by virtue of the |aws of
the state of Delaware, with its office and principal place of
busi ness | ocated at 13430 Northwest Freeway, Suite 1200, Houst on,
Texas 77040.

2. Proposed respondent admts all the jurisdictional facts
set forth in the draft of conplaint here attached.
3. Proposed respondent wai ves:
a. any further procedural steps;
b. the requirenment that the Conm ssion's decision

contain a statenent of findings of fact and
concl usi ons of |aw,
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C. all rights to seek judicial review or otherwise to
chal l enge or contest the validity of the Order
entered pursuant to this agreenent; and

d. any cl ai munder the Equal Access to Justice Act.
4. Thi s agreenent shall not becone part of the public
record of the proceeding unless and until it is accepted by the
Commi ssion. |If this agreenent is accepted by the Comm ssion, it,

together wwth the draft of conplaint contenplated thereby, wll
be placed on the public record for a period of sixty (60) days
and information in respect thereto publicly rel eased. The

Comm ssion thereafter may either withdraw its acceptance of this
agreenent and so notify the proposed respondent, in which event
it wll take such action as it may consider appropriate, or issue
and serve its conplaint (in such formas the circunstances
require) and decision, in disposition of the proceeding.

5. This agreenent is for settlenent purposes only and does
not constitute an adm ssion by proposed respondent that the | aw
has been violated as alleged in the draft of conplaint here
attached, or that the facts as alleged in the draft conplaint,
other than jurisdictional facts, are true.

6. Thi s agreenent contenplates that, if it is accepted by
the Comm ssion, and if such acceptance is not subsequently
wi t hdrawn by the Conm ssion pursuant to the provisions of § 2.34
of the Comm ssion's Rules, the Comm ssion may, W thout further
notice to the proposed respondent, (1) issue its conplaint
corresponding in formand substance with the draft of conpl aint
and its decision containing the following Order to divest and to
cease and desist in disposition of the proceeding and (2) make
information public with respect thereto. Wen so entered, the
Order to divest and to cease and desist shall have the sanme force
and effect and may be altered, nodified, or set aside in the sane
manner and within the sane tine provided by statute for other
orders. The Order shall becone final upon service. Delivery by
the United States Postal Service of the conplaint and deci sion
containing the agreed-to Order to proposed respondent's address
as stated in this agreenent shall constitute service. Proposed
respondent waives any right it may have to any ot her manner of
service. The conplaint may be used in construing the terns of
the Order, and no agreenent, understanding, representation, or
interpretation not contained in the Order or the agreenment nmay be
used to vary or contradict the terns of the O der.

7. Proposed respondent has read the proposed conpl ai nt and
Order contenpl ated hereby. Proposed respondent understands that,
once the Order has been issued, it will be required to file one
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or nore conpliance reports showng that it has fully conplied
with the Order. Proposed respondent further understands that it
may be liable for civil penalties in the anount provided by | aw
for each violation of the Order after it becones final.

ORDER
l.

I T 1S ORDERED that, as used in this Oder, the follow ng
definitions shall apply:

A "Conbi nati on" neans the transactions contenpl ated by
t he Conbi nati on Agreenent and Plan of Merger, dated as of My 22,
1996, anong NGC Cor poration, Chevron U S. A Inc., and M dstream
Combi nati on Cor p.

B. "Commercial Operator” neans the person or entity with
the legal authority to enter into contracts on behalf of a
Fractionation Facility to provide third parties with the service
of Fractionation for a fee and to set the prices offered to third
parties for such service.

C. "Facility Operator” neans any person or entity with the
| egal authority to engage in any activity involved in the routine
managenent, supervision or operation of a Fractionation Facility,
including, but not limted to: the receipt, nmeasurenent,
handl i ng and storage of raw natural gas liquids delivered to the
Fractionation Facility; the maintenance, repair and operation of
any equi pment, machinery or other assets used in the course of
the operation of the Fractionation Facility; the handling,
storage and novenent of Specification Products produced at the
Fractionation Facility prior to receipt by a third party; the
purchase and use of material and supplies in connection wth the
operation, maintenance and repair of the Fractionation Facility;
the provision of accounting, billing and scheduling functions
necessary for the processing of transactions with Fractionation
custoners; the provision of engineering services necessary for
operation of the Fractionation Facility; preparation and
subm ssion of any necessary reports to governnental authorities;
t he procurenment of any necessary licenses and permts on behal f
of the Fractionation Facility; the purchase of services necessary
for the Fractionation Facility's operation; and the supervision
of the inplenentation of any decision to expand or nodify, repair
or maintain the Fractionation Facility.

D. "Fractionation" neans the process of separating raw
natural gas liquids into specification products.
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E. "Fractionation Facility" neans a facility that
separates raw natural gas liquids into specification products.

F. "GCF" nmeans @ulf Coast Fractionators, a Texas general
part ner shi p.

G "GCF Expansion Project" nmeans any current or future
project involving an expenditure for equi pnent or other capital
assets reasonably necessary to increase the capacity of the GCF
Fractionation Facility beyond its effective capacity |level at the
time the expenditure is undertaken.

H. “GCF Fractionation Facility” neans the Fractionation
Facility owned by GCF |located at 1.5 m|es west of H ghway 146 on
FM 1942, Mont Bel vi eu, Chanbers County, Texas.

l. “GCF Partnership Agreenent” nmeans the Amended and
Rest at ed Partnershi p Agreenent between Trident NG, Inc. and
Li qui d Energy Corporation and Conoco Inc., effective Decenber 1,
1992.

J. "MB I" means Mont Belvieu |, a Fractionation Facility,
originally constructed by GCties SerV|ce Conmpany in 1970, |ocated
at 9900 FM 1942, Mont Bel vi eu, Chanbers County, Texas.

K. “MB | Omnership Agreenent” neans the Agreenent for the
Construction, Omership and Operation of the Mnt Bel vieu
Fractionation Facility between Trident NG, Inc. and Union
Pacific Fuels, Inc., dated Novenber 17, 1993, and any subsequent
amendnent s t hereof .

L. "NGC' means NGC Corporation, its directors, officers,
enpl oyees, agents and representatives, predecessors, successors
and assigns; its subsidiaries, divisions, and groups and
affiliates controlled by NG, and the respective directors,
of ficers, enployees, agents, representatives, successors and
assi gns of each.

M "Property to be Divested' nmeans NGC s interest in (1)
MB |l; and (2) all assets, title, properties, interest, rights and
privil eges, of whatever nature, tangi ble and intangible, and
ot her property of whatever description and |ocation used in the
business of MBIl including, without limtation:

1. all buildings, machinery, fixtures, equipnent,
vehi cl es, pipelines, storage facilities, furniture,
tools, supplies, spare parts and other tangible
personal property |located in Mnt Belvieu, Texas;
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2. all rights, title and interest in and to real property
| ocated in Mont Bel vieu, Texas, together with
appurtenances, licenses, and permts;

3. all books, records and files;

4. all rights under warranti es and guarantees for
equi pnent, express or inplied;

5. all technical information and draw ngs for equi pnent;

6. all vendor lists, catal ogs, sales pronotion literature,

and advertising nmaterials;

7. all inventory of finished goods, work in progress, raw
materials and supplies;

8. at the option of the Acquirer all rights, title and
interests in and to the contracts and | eases entered
into in the ordinary course of business with suppliers,
measur enent equi pnment operators, storage facility
operators, transm ssion pipeline operators,
Fractionation custonmers and personal property |essors
and licensors, pertaining to the operation of MBI
provi ded that where third party consent is required to
conpl ete the transfer described in this subparagraph,
NGC shall use best efforts to obtain such third party’s
consent .

N. “Speci fication products” nean et hane, propane, ethane-
propane m x, iso-butane, nornmal-butane and natural gasoline.

1.
| T I'S FURTHER ORDERED t hat :

A Wthin six (6) nonths after the signing of the
Agreenment Contai ni ng Consent Order, NGC shall divest, absolutely
and in good faith, the Property to be D vested. The Property to
be Divested shall be divested only to an acquirer or acquirers
that receive the prior approval of the Conm ssion, and only in a
manner that receives the prior approval of the Comm ssion. The
purpose of the divestiture required by this Order is to ensure
the continued operation of MB 1 in the Fractionation business in
t he same manner as conducted by MB | at the tinme of the proposed
divestiture and to renedy the | essening of conpetition alleged in
t he Comm ssion's conpl ai nt.
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permt the trustee to effect the divestiture required
by this Order.

4. The trustee shall have twelve (12) nonths fromthe date
t he Comm ssi on approves the trust agreenent described
in Paragraph 111.B.3 to acconplish the divestiture,
whi ch shall be subject to the prior approval of the
Comm ssion. 1f, however, at the end of the
twel ve-nonth period the trustee has submtted a plan of
di vestiture or believes that divestiture can be
acconplished wthin a reasonable tinme, the divestiture
period may be extended by the Comm ssion, or in the
case of a court-appointed trustee, by the court;
provi ded, however, that the Conm ssion nmay extend the
di vestiture period only two (2) tines.

5. NGC shall provide the trustee with full and conpl ete
access to the personnel, books, records and facilities
relating to the Property to be D vested, or any other
relevant information, as the trustee may request. NGC
shal | devel op such financial or other infornmation as
such trustee may request and shall cooperate with the
trustee. NGC shall take no action to interfere with or
i npede the trustee's acconplishnent of the divestiture.
Any del ays in divestiture caused by NGC shall extend
the tinme for divestiture under this Paragraph in an
anount equal to the delay, as determ ned by the
Comm ssion or for a court-appointed trustee, the court.

6. The trustee shall make reasonable efforts to negotiate
the nost favorable price and terns avail able in each
contract that is submtted to the Conmm ssion, subject
to NGC s absol ute and unconditional obligation to
di vest at no mninmumprice. The divestiture shall be
made in the manner and to the acquirer or acquirers as
set out in Paragraph Il of this Order; provided,
however, if the trustee receives bona fide offers from
nore than one acquiring entity, and if the Conm ssion
determ nes to approve nore than one such acquiring
entity, the trustee shall divest to the acquiring
entity or entities selected by NGC from anong those
approved by the Conm ssion.

7. The trustee shall serve, w thout bond or other
security, at the cost and expense of NGC, on such
reasonabl e and customary terns and conditions as the
Comm ssion or the court may set. The trustee shal
have authority to enploy, at the cost and expense of
NGC, such consultants, accountants, attorneys,
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10.

11.

12.

C.

i nvest ment bankers, business brokers, appraisers, and
ot her representatives and assistants as are reasonably
necessary to carry out the trustee's duties and
responsibilities. The trustee shall account for al
nmoni es derived fromthe divestiture and all expenses
incurred. After approval by the Conm ssion and, in the
case of a court-appointed trustee, by the court, of the
account of the trustee, including fees for his or her
services, all remaining nonies shall be paid at the
direction of NGC and the trustee's power shall be
termnated. The trustee's conpensation shall be based
at least in a significant part on a conm ssion
arrangenent contingent on the trustee's divesting the
Property to be Divested.

NGC shall indemify the trustee and hold the trustee
harm ess agai nst any | osses, clains, danages,
l[iabilities, or expenses arising out of, or in
connection wth, the performance of the trustee's
duties, including all reasonable fees of counsel and
ot her expenses incurred in connection with the
preparation for, or defense of any claim whether or
not resulting in any liability, except to the extent
that such liabilities, |osses, damages, clains, or
expenses result from m sfeasance, gross negligence,
wllful or wanton acts, or bad faith by the trustee.

If the trustee ceases to act or fails to act

diligently, a substitute trustee shall be appointed in
t he sane manner as provided in Paragraph II1l.A of this
O der.

The Conmm ssion or, in the case of a court-appointed
trustee, the court, may on its own initiative or at the
request of the trustee issue such additional orders or
directions as may be necessary or appropriate to
acconplish the divestiture required by this O der

The trustee shall have no obligation or authority to
operate or nmaintain the Property to be Divested.

The trustee shall report in witing to NGC and to the
Comm ssi on every sixty (60) days concerning the
trustee's efforts to acconplish divestiture.

| f NGC has not divested, absolutely and in good faith

and with the Comm ssion's prior approval the Property to be
Di vested as required by Paragraph Il of this Order within six (6)
nont hs after the signing of the Agreenent Containing Consent
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Order, NGC shall, by such date: (i) cease to serve as the
Commerci al Operator of MB 1 (assuming NGC is then serving as
Commerci al Operator under the provisions of Paragraph 3 of the
Hol d Separate); (ii) cease to serve as the Facility Operator of
MB1l; and (iii) take all necessary steps under the MB
Owmnership Agreenment to install the other party to said Oaership
Agreenment as the Commercial Operator and the Facility Operator of
MB |.

| V.
| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED t hat :

A Upon the signing of the Agreenent Contai ni ng Consent
Order, NGC shall inmediately give the requisite six (6) nonth
notice under the GCF Partnership Agreenent of its intent to cease
serving as the Commercial and Facility Operator at GCF. Wthin
thirty (30) days after the signing of the Agreenent Contai ning
Consent Order, NGC shall cease to serve as the Conmerci al
Operator of GCF, provided a replacenment agrees to be installed as
the Comrercial Operator of GCF by that date. Wthin one hundred
and twenty (120) days after the signing of the Agreenent
Cont ai ni ng Consent Order, NGC shall cease to serve as the
Facility Operator of GCF, provided a replacenent agrees to be
installed as the Facility OQperator of GCF by that date. 1In the
event that a replacenent has not elected to assune the activities
of the Commercial Operator of GCF within the thirty (30) day
period provided or that a replacenent has not elected to assune
the activities of the Facility Operator of GCF within the one
hundred and twenty (120) day period provided, then the provisions
of Paragraph 4 of the Hold Separate shall apply, but only until
six (6) nmonths after the signing of the Agreenent Cont aining
Consent Order. NGC shall, by the end of said six (6) nonth
period: (i) cease to serve as the Comrercial COperator of GCF
(assum ng NGC is then serving as Conmercial Operator under the
provi sions of Paragraph 4 of the Hold Separate); (ii) cease to
serve as the Facility Operator of GCF; and (iii) take al
necessary steps under the GCF Partnership Agreenent to instal
one of the other parties to said Partnership Agreenment as the
Commerci al Operator and the Facility Operator of GCF.

B. NGC shall do nothing to prevent, inpede or interfere
with the person or entity that succeeds NGC as either the
Commerci al Operator or the Facility Operator of GCF in
undertaki ng reasonabl e efforts to offer enploynent to any NGC
enpl oyees who assist in the performance of any activities that
NGC engages in as the Conmercial Operator or as the Facility
Operator at GCF, respectively.
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Comm ssion may require, NGC shall file a verified witten report
with the Comm ssion setting forth in detail the manner and form
in which it has conplied and is conplying with Paragraphs |V and
V of this Oder. Such reports shall include, but not be limted
to, a listing by nanme and | ocation of all Fractionation
Facilities in Mont Belvieu, Texas, in which NGC has any ownership
interest, including but not limted to ownership interest
obt ai ned due to default, foreclosure proceedi ngs or purchases in
forecl osure, made by NGC during the twelve (12) nonths precedi ng
the date of the report.

VI,

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that, for a period of ten (10) years
fromthe date this Order becones final, NGC shall notify the
Comm ssion at least thirty (30) days prior to any proposed change
inits organization that may affect conpliance obligations under
this Order, such as dissolution, assignnment or sale resulting in
t he emergence of a successor, or the creation or dissolution of
subsi diaries, or any other change that may affect conpliance
obl i gati ons under this Order.

VIITT.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that, for the purpose of determ ning
or securing conpliance with this Oder, subject to any legally
recogni zed privilege, upon witten request with reasonable notice
to NGC nmade to its principal officer, NGC shall permt any duly
aut hori zed representative or representatives of the Comm ssion:

A access, during the office hours of NGC and in the
presence of counsel, to inspect and copy all books,
| edgers, accounts, correspondence, nenoranda and ot her
records and docunents in the possession or under the
control of NGC relating to any matters contained in
this Order; and

B. upon five (5) days' notice to NGC and w t hout restraint
or interference therefrom to interview officers or
enpl oyees of NGC, who may have counsel present,
regardi ng such matters.
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I X.

| T 1S FURTHER ORDERED that this Order shall term nate twenty
(20) years fromthe date this Order becones final.

SIGNED this day of , 1996.
NGC CORPORATI ON BUREAU OF COVPETI Tl ON
By:
C. L. Watson Art Nol an
Pr esi dent and Counsel for the Federal
Chi ef Executive Trade Conmi ssion
O ficer of NGC
Cor poration
APPROVED:
By: Phillip L. Broyles
Paul B. Hewi tt Assi stant Director
Aki n, @unp, Strauss,
Hauer & Feld, L.L.P.,
Counsel for NGC
Cor por ati on
George S. Cary
Seni or Deputy Director
By:
Al ex Kogan
Aki n, Qunp, Strauss,
Hauer & Feld, L.L.P., WlliamJ. Baer
Counsel for NGC Director

Cor por ati on Federal Trade Commi ssion
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UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON

In the Matter of

NGC CORPORATI ON,
a corporation.

Docket No. 961-0046
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Agreenment to Hol d Separate

This Agreenent to Hold Separate ("Hold Separate") is by and
bet ween NGC Corporation ("NGC'), a corporation organi zed and
exi sting under the laws of the state of Delaware, wth its office
and principal place of business |ocated at 13430 Nort hwest
Freeway, Suite 1200, Houston, Texas 77040, and the Federal Trade
Commi ssion (the "Conmm ssion"), an independent agency of the
United States CGovernnent, established under the Federal Trade
Comm ssion Act of 1914, as anended, 15 U.S.C. 88 41, et seq.
(collectively, the "Parties").

Prem ses

Wher eas, on or about May 22, 1996, NGC entered into a
Combi nati on Agreenment and Plan of Merger with Chevron U. S. A
Inc., a subsidiary of Chevron Corporation ("Chevron"), and
M dst ream Conbi nati on Corp., which contenplates certain
transactions (hereinafter, such transactions collectively
referred to as "the Proposed Conbination"); and






(i) remedy any anticonpetitive effects of the Proposed
Conbi nati on; and

(i) preserve the Property to be Divested as an
ongoi ng, conpetitive entity engaged in the sane
business in which it is presently enployed until
di vestiture is achieved; and

Whereas, NGC s entering into this Hold Separate shall in no
way be construed as an adm ssion by NGC that the Proposed
Conbi nation constitutes a violation of any statute; and

Wher eas, NGC understands that no act or transaction
contenplated by this Hold Separate shall be deened i nmune or
exenpt fromthe provisions of the antitrust |laws or the Federal
Trade Conm ssion Act by reason of anything contained in this
Agr eenent .

NOW THEREFORE, the parties agree, upon the understandi ng
that the Conm ssion has not yet determ ned whether the Proposed

Conbi nation wll be challenged, and in consideration of the
Comm ssion's agreenent that, at the tine it accepts the Consent
Agreenent for public comment it will grant early term nation of

the Hart-Scott-Rodino waiting periods for any transactions that
are part of the Proposed Conbinati on and are subject to any Hart-
Scott-Rodino waiting period that has not yet expired, and unless
the Comm ssion determnes to reject the Consent Agreenent, it

Wl not seek further relief fromNGC with respect to the
Proposed Conbi nation, except that the Conm ssion nmay exercise any
and all rights to enforce this Hold Separate, the Consent
Agreenment to which it is annexed and nade a part thereof, and the
Order contained therein, once it beconmes final, and in the event
that the required divestiture is not acconplished, to seek

di vestiture of the Property to be Divested, and other relief, as
fol | ows:



1. NGC agrees to execute and be bound by the Consent
Agr eenent ;

2. NGC agrees that fromthe date of its signing of the
Consent Agreenent until the earliest of the dates listed in
subparagraphs 2.a - 2.c, it will conply with the provisions of
paragraphs 3, 4, 5 and 6 of this Hold Separate:

a. t hree busi ness days after the Comm ssion withdraws its
accept ance of the Consent Agreenent pursuant to the
provi sions of Section 2.34 of the Conm ssion's Rul es;

b. 120 days after publication in the Federal Register of
t he Consent Agreenent, unless by that date the
Commi ssion has finally accepted such Agreenent;

C. the day after the divestitures required by the Consent
Agreenent have been conpl et ed.

3. Wth respect to the Fractionation Facility located in
the city of Mont Belvieu, Chanbers County, Texas, partially owned
by NGC and known as Mont Belvieu | ("MB 1"), NGC agrees to cease
serving as the Comercial Operator within thirty days (30) after
signing the Consent Agreenent, provided that the other party to
the MB | Oanership Agreenent agrees to be installed as the
Commerci al Operator of MB 1 by that date. In the event that the
other party to the MBI Omership Agreenent has not elected to
becone the Commercial Operator within said thirty (30) day
period, NG will hold its interests in the assets and busi ness of
MB | separate and apart on the following terns and conditions:

a. NGC s rights, obligations and duties as the Conmerci al
Qperator of MB 1 shall be exclusively adm nistered by
Davi d Rook. Al NGC enpl oyees who are necessary to
perform or in any way assist in the performance of,
any of the activities of the Comercial Qperator of M
| shall report to M. Rook, and NGC shall provide the
Comm ssion with a list of all such enpl oyees, together
with a full description of the assigned duties of each
i sted enpl oyee and an expl anati on of how such duties
are necessary for the effective functioning of the
Commercial Qperator of MBI, which list shall be
updat ed whenever its nenbership or any menber’s
assi gned duties change. NG&C shall have no authority to
remove M. Rook or any other NGC enpl oyee thus assi gned
to report to him except for cause.



Except as provided by this Hold Separate, neither M.
Rook nor any enpl oyee of NGC nanmed in the list required
in Paragraph 3.a. above shall disclose any confidenti al
information concerning MB 1 to an NGC enpl oyee not
named on any such list or use confidential information
for any purpose other than in the perfornmance of that
enpl oyee’ s assigned duties enunerated in the |ist
required in Paragraph 3.a. above. Said enpl oyees shall
enter a confidentiality agreenent prohibiting

di sclosure of confidential information. Neither M.
Rook nor any NGC enpl oyee assigned to report to him
pursuant to this Hold Separate shall participate in any
busi ness decision or attenpt to influence any such

deci sion involving any other Fractionation Facility in
which NGC has an interest. Neither M. Rook or any NGC
enpl oyees assigned to report to himpursuant to this
Hol d Separate shall have access to any confidenti al
informati on concerning any other Fractionation Facility
in which NGC has an interest. Meetings of the MB
Managenent Commttee during the termof this Hold
Separate shall be stenographically transcribed and the
transcripts retained for two (2) years after the
termnation of this Hold Separate; and

NGC shall do nothing to prevent, inpede or interfere
with the person or entity that succeeds NGC as either
the Comrercial Operator or the Facility Operator of M
| in undertaking reasonable efforts to offer enploynent
to any NGC enpl oyees who assist in the perfornmance of
any activities that NGC engages in as the Comerci al
Qperator at MB 1 or as the Facility Operator at MB |
respectively.



4. Wth respect to the Fractionation Facility |located in
the city of Mont Bel vi eu, Chanbers County, Texas, and owned by a
partnership knowmn as Gulf Coast Fractionators ("GCF") in which
NGC is a partner, NGC agrees to cease serving as the Comrercia
Qperator within thirty days(30) after signing the Consent
Agreenent, provided a replacenent agrees to be installed as the
Commercial Operator of GCF by that date. Wthin one hundred and
twenty (120) days after the signing of the Consent Agreenent, NGC
shal|l cease to serve as the Facility Operator of GCF, provided a
repl acenent agrees to be installed as the Facility Operator of
CGCF by that date. 1In the event that a replacenent has not
el ected to assunme the activities of the Conmercial Operator of
CCF within the thirty (30) day period provided or that a
repl acenent has not elected to assune the activities of the
Facility Operator of GCF within the one hundred and twenty (120)
day period provided, NGCwill hold its interests in the assets
and busi ness of GCF separate and apart on the follow ng terns and
condi ti ons:

a. NGC s rights, obligations and duties as the Conmerci al
Qperator of GCF, in the first instance, and as the
Facility Qperator of GCF, in the second instance, shal
be exclusively adm ni stered by an NGC designee. In
either instance, all NGC enpl oyees who are necessary to
perform or in any way assist in the performance of,
any of the activities being adm ni stered by said
desi gnee shall report to said NGC designee, and NCC
shal | provide the Conmssion with a list of all such
enpl oyees, together with a full description of the
assigned duties of each |listed enpl oyee and an
expl anati on of how such duties are necessary for the
effective functioning of, in the first instance, the
Commercial Qperator of GCF, and in the second instance,
the Facility Qperator of GCF, which list shall be
updat ed whenever its nenbership or any menber’s
assi gned duties changes. N&C shall have no authority
to renmove its designee or any ot her NGC enpl oyee thus
assigned to report to said designee, except for cause.









7. NGC wai ves all rights to contest the validity of this
Hol d Separate.

8. For the purpose of determ ning or securing conpliance
with this Hold Separate, subject to any legally recognized
privilege, and upon witten request with reasonable notice to NGC
made to its principal office, NGC shall permt any duly
aut hori zed representative or representatives of the Comm ssion:

a. access, during the office hours of NGC and in the
presence of counsel, to inspect and copy all books,
| edgers, accounts, correspondence, nenoranda, and ot her
records and docunents in the possession or under the
control of NGC relating to conpliance with this Hold
Separate; and

b. upon five (5) days' notice to NGC and wi t hout restraint
or interference fromit but in the presence of its
counsel, to interview officers or enployees of it
regardi ng any such matters.

9. Shoul d the Federal Trade Comm ssion seek in any
proceedi ng to conpel NGC to divest itself of the Property to be
D vested under the Consent Agreenent, or any other assets that it
may hold, or to seek any other injunctive or equitable relief,
NGC shall not rai se any objection based upon the expiration of
the applicable Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust |nprovenents Act
waiting period or the fact that the Comm ssion has permtted the
Proposed Conbi nation. NGC also waives all rights to contest the
validity of this Hold Separate.



10. This Hold Separate shall be binding upon NGC upon the
signing of the Consent Agreement. NGC agrees that should it
violate any of the provisions of this Hold Separate, it is
subject to the paynent of up to ten thousand dollars ($10, 000)
for each such violation. NGC also agrees that the violation of
any of the provisions of this Hold Separate may subject NGC to
such other and further equitable relief as a United States
district court may deem appropriate to grant.

Dat ed:

NGC CORPORATI ON

By:

C.L. Watson
Presi dent and Chi ef
Executive Oficer

FEDERAL TRADE COWMM SSI ON

By:

St ephen Cal ki ns
Ceneral Counsel
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UNI TED STATES OF AMERI CA
BEFORE FEDERAL TRADE COWM SSI ON

In the Matter of

NGC CORPORATI ON,
a corporation.

Docket No.

N N N N N N N

COWVPLAI NT

Pursuant to the provisions of the Federal Trade Conmm ssion
Act (“FTC Act”), and by virtue of the authority vested in it by
said Act, the Federal Trade Comm ssion ("Comm ssion"), having
reason to believe that respondent NGC Corporation ("NGC'), a
corporation subject to the jurisdiction of the Conm ssion, has
entered into an agreenent to acquire certain assets of Chevron
US A Inc. (“Chevron USA”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Chevron
Cor poration (“Chevron”), a corporation subject to the
jurisdiction of the Conm ssion, in violation of Section 7 of the
Clayton Act, as anended, 15 U . S.C. § 18, and Section 5 of the FTC
Act, as anended, 15 U. S.C. § 45, and that a proceeding in respect
t hereof would be in the public interest, hereby issues its
Conplaint stating its charges as foll ows:

DEFI NI TI ONS
PARAGRAPH ONE: For purposes of this Conplaint:

“Natural gas |iquids” neans hydrocarbon conpounds produced when
natural gas (nethane) is purified, wth nol ecules containing two
to five or nore carbon atons, whether comm ngled as raw m x from
gas processing plants or fractionated into individual
specification products. Natural gas |iquids specification
products are ultimately used in the manufacture of
petrochemcals, in the refining of gasoline, and as bottled fuel,
anong ot hers uses.

“Fractionation” neans separating raw m x natural gas liquids into
natural gas liquids specification products such as ethane or



et hane- propane, propane, iso-butane, nornal-butane, and natural
gasoline via a series of distillation processes.

THE RESPONDENT

PARAGRAPH TWO. Respondent NGC is a corporation organized,

exi sting, and doi ng business under and by virtue of the | aws of
the State of Delaware, with its office and principal place of
busi ness at 13430 Northwest Freeway, Suite 1200, Houston, Texas
77040.

PARAGRAPH THREE: Respondent NGC is, and at all tines rel evant
herei n has been, engaged in commerce, as "commerce" is defined in
Section 1 of the Cayton Act, as anended, 15 U.S.C. § 12, and is
a corporation whose business is in or affects commerce, as
"commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act, as anended, 15
US C 8§ 44.

THE ACQUI SI TI ON

PARAGRAPH FOUR:  Chevron Corporation is a corporation organized,
exi sting, and doi ng busi ness under and by virtue of the | aws of
the State of Delaware, with its office and principal place of
busi ness at 575 Market Street, San Francisco, California 94104.

PARAGRAPH FI VE: Chevron U . S.A 1Inc. is a corporation organized,
exi sting, and doi ng business under and by virtue of the | aws of
the State of Delaware, with its office and principal place of
busi ness at 575 Market Street, San Francisco, California 94104.

PARACGRAPH SI X: Chevron and Chevron USA are, and at all tinmes

rel evant herein have been, engaged in conmerce, as "commerce" is
defined in Section 1 of the Clayton Act, as anended, 15 U S.C. 8§
12, and are corporations whose businesses are in or affect
conmerce, as "commerce" is defined in Section 4 of the FTC Act,
as anended, 15 U.S.C. § 44.



PARAGRAPH SEVEN:. Respondent NGC entered into an agreenment with
Chevron USA, dated My 22, 1996, to acquire certain assets of
Chevron USA in exchange for a 28% ownership interest in NGC al ong
with $300 million in cash and debt assunption. The assets to be
acquired include natural gas and natural gas |iquids processing
facilities, transportation and term naling assets, the
fractionation facility at Mont Bel vieu, Texas and associ at ed
under ground storage, and gas marketing and sal es contracts.

THE RELEVANT MARKET

PARAGRAPH EI GHT: The relevant |line of commerce in which to
anal yze the effects of the acquisition described herein is the
fractionation of natural gas |iquids.

PARAGRAPH NI NE: The rel evant section of the country in which to
anal yze the effects of the acquisition is the vicinity of Mnt
Bel vi eu, Texas. Mont Belvieu offers extensive storage
facilities, unmatched pipeline connections for raw m x and

speci fication products, and nunerous specification products
buyers. As a result, Mnt Belvieu is the U S. hub for
fractionation of raw m x natural gas liquids. And it is the
nation’s prem er marketplace for sales of fractionated
specification products. Producers of raw m x natural gas |iquids
t hroughout nuch of Texas, New Mexico, western Wom ng, and

west ern Col orado have no good alternative to Mont Belvieu for
their fractionation needs.

PARAGRAPH TEN: The relevant |line of commerce is highly
concentrated in the relevant section of the country whet her
nmeasured by Herfindahl -H rschmann I ndices or two-firm and
four-firmconcentration rati os.



PARAGRAPH ELEVEN. NGC is an actual and potential conpetitor of
Chevron in the relevant Iine of commerce in the relevant section
of the country. NGC would, after the acquisition, have the

| argest market share in the relevant |ine of comrerce throughout
the rel evant section of the country. NGC would, after the

acqui sition of Chevron's fractionator, control three of the four
fractionators at Mont Belvieu. NGC s control would extend over
approximately 70 percent of the current fractionating capacity at
Mont Bel vi eu.

PARAGRAPH TWELVE: Entry into the relevant |line of commerce is
difficult and would not be tinely, likely or sufficient to
prevent anticonpetitive effects in the relevant section of the
country.

EFFECTS OF THE ACQUI SI Tl ON

PARAGRAPH THI RTEEN: The effects of the acquisition, if
consummat ed, nmay be substantially to | essen conpetition or to
tend to create a nonopoly in the relevant line of commerce in the
rel evant section of the country in violation of Section 7 of the
Cl ayton Act, as anended, 15 U . S.C. §8 18, and Section 5 of the FTC
Act, as anended, 15 U.S.C. § 45, in the follow ng ways, anong

ot hers:

a. by elimnating actual and potentia
conpetition between NGC and Chevron to
provide fractionation services to producers
of natural gas |iquids,

b. by increasing the |likelihood that NGC w ||
unil aterally exerci se market power, and

C. by increasing the |ikelihood of, or
facilitating, collusive or coordinated
i nteraction,

each of which increases the Iikelihood that the prices of
fractionation services will increase in the rel evant section of
t he country.



VI OLATI ONS CHARGED

PARAGRAPH FOURTEEN: The acqui sition agreenent described in
Par agraph Seven violates Section 5 of the FTC Act, as anended,
15 U.S. C. § 45.

PARAGRAPH FI FTEEN. The proposed acqui sition described in

Par agraph Seven, would, if consummted, violate Section 7 of the
Clayton Act, as anmended, 15 U . S.C. § 18, and Section 5 of the FTC
Act, as anended, 15 U.S.C. § 45.

WHEREFORE, THE PREM SES CONSI DERED, the Federal Trade Conmi ssion,
on this day of 1996, issues its Conplaint agai nst
sai d respondent.

By the Conmmi ssion.

Donald S. C ark
Secretary

SEAL:

| SSUED






gas liquids at Mont Belvieu, Texas. The Conplaint alleges that
this market is highly concentrated and entry is difficult or

unli kely. The Comm ssion was concerned that the acquisition my
reduce conpetition in the Mont Belvieu fractionation market, by
elimnating the direct conpetition between NGC and Chevron, by
increasing the likelihood that NGC w Il unilaterally exercise

mar ket power, and by increasing the |ikelihood of, or
facilitating, collusive or coordinated interaction anong the few
remai ni ng significant conpetitors. Consequently, the acquisition
may | ead to anticonpetitive increases in fractionation prices.

Typically, in the purification of natural gas (i.e.,
met hane), a liquified stream of certain heavier hydrocarbon
conpounds, called raw m x natural gas liquids, is also produced.
Fractionation is the process of separating raw m x natural gas
l[iquids into certain discrete, highly-marketable chem cal
coommodities (i.e., ethane, propane, ethane-propane m x, iso-
but ane, normal - but ane and natural gasoline), called natural gas
[iquids specification products. Natural gas |iquids
specification products are ultimately used in the manufacture of
petrochemcals, in the refining of gasoline, and as bottled fuel,
anong ot hers uses.

The Conmm ssion's investigation of this matter found
potential anticonpetitive problens for producers of raw m x who
obtain fractionation services at Mont Belvieu, Texas. Mont
Belvieu is the nation’s hub for the fractionation of raw m x
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natural gas liquids and the subsequent sale of fractionated
specification products. Producers of raw m x natural gas |iquids
t hroughout nuch of Texas, New Mexico, western Wom ng and western
Col orado have no good alternative to Mont Belvieu for their
fractionation needs. There are only a few facilities providing
fractionation services in Mnt Belvieu, anong them are Chevron's
Warren facility and two partially owned by NGC -- Mnt Bel vieu
(“mMB 1”) and @ulf Coast Fractionators (“CCF”).

The agreenent containing consent order is designed to renedy
t he Comm ssion's conpetitive concerns about the acquisition.
Under the ternms of the proposed order, NGC nust divest its
interest in MBIl wthin six nonths to a purchaser approved by the
Commission. |If NGC fails to conplete the divestiture within the
si x nonths, the Conmm ssion may appoint a trustee to undertake the
task. Wth respect to GCF, NGCis required to give up its
managenent role and to refrain fromparticipating in future
decisions on pricing or capital expansion. Since NG wll be
permtted to retain its mnority interest in GCF, after the
acquisition NGC wll still own interests in two fractionation
facilities. However, NGC will have little incentive to operate
Warren in a | ess-than-conpetitive manner in the expectation of
benefitting from higher prices at GCF. Because nost of CGCF' s
capacity is already accounted for by long-termcontracts at fixed
formula prices and by NGC s captive production, GCF will have
l[ittle opportunity to raise its prices. The proposed
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| east 50% ownership interest in GCF) to undertake a capacity
expansion of GCF; and (ii) abstain fromparticipation in any
matter involving the ternms of fractionation service contracts
offered to third-party custoners. For a period of ten (10) years
fromthe date that the order becones final, the order would
require prior Comm ssion notification before NGC could acquire
any interest in, or operatorship of, an existing fractionation
facility wwthin ten (10) mles of Mnt Belvieu, Texas.

The purpose of this analysis is to invite public comment
concerning the consent order. This analysis is not intended to
constitute an official interpretation of the agreenent and order

or to nodify their ternms in any way.



